Elfers Christian Preschool Parent Handbook



Table of Contents

I. Welcome	3
2. Statement of Basic Beliefs	
3. Our Philosophy	
4. Mission Statement	6
5. Goals for Children	6
6. Security Procedures	7
7. Child's First Day	7
8. Parent/Teacher Communication	
9. Open Door Policy	
10. Discipline and Guidance Policy	7
11. Health and Immunizations	
12. When your child is sick or needs medication	8
13. When your child is absent	9
14. Severe Weather	
15. Registration and Tuition	
16. Confidentiality Policy	
19. Withdrawal Policy	
20. Days that our Preschool is closed	
21. Dress Code	. 10
22. Supplies	
23. Lunch Policy	. 10

[&]quot;I have no greater joy than to hear that my children are walking in the truth."

1. Welcome

Welcome to Elfers Christian Preschool. We sincerely hope this will be the beginning of a rewarding and trusting relationship between your family and us. This handbook is meant to serve as a guide to what you should expect from us as well as what your responsibilities are. The teachers and staff are carefully screened and prayerfully chosen through a thorough interview process and then undergo a FDLE (Florida Department Law Enforcement) electronic background check. They are also checked through the local law enforcement agency and are all certified in First Aid and CPR. Our preschool is accredited with FACCS (Florida Association of Christian Colleges and Schools). As you are reading this handbook, if you have any questions or concerns about these policies and procedures, please feel free to visit with us. We have an open door policy and would love to hear from you.



2. Statement of Basic Beliefs

We affirm the Holy Bible as the inspired Word of God and the basis of our beliefs. First Baptist Church of Elfers, FL sponsors Elfers Christian School as an integral and inseparable ministry. FBC Elfers subscribes to the doctrinal statement of the Baptist Faith and Message as adopted by the Southern Baptist Convention in the year 2000. Additionally, the following sets forth a number of the teachings of scripture as interpreted by FBC Elfers, FL.

Section A. The Scriptures

The Holy Bible was written by men divinely inspired and is the record of God's revelation of Himself to man. It has God as its Author, and Truth, without any mixture of error for its matter. It reveals the principles by which God judges us; and therefore is, and will remain to the end of the world. The Bible is the supreme standard by which all human conduct, creeds, and religious opinions should be tried and tested. The Bible is to be interpreted through the guidance of the Holy Spirit, Who leads into all truth. (II Timothy 3: 16-17) The Church reserves to itself the sole right and authority to interpret the Scriptures, and whether any person or member is acting in conformity with them.

Section B. Holy God

There is one and only one Living, True, and Sovereign God. He is an intelligent, spiritual, and personal Being, the Creator, Redeemer, Preserver, and Ruler of the universe. God is infinite in holiness and all other perfections. To Him we owe the highest love, reverence, and obedience. The eternal God reveals Himself to us as Father, Son, and Holy Spirit, with distinct personal attributes, but without division of nature or being. (Deuteronomy 6: 4-9)

- 1. God the Father
 - God as our Father reigns with providential care over His universe, His creatures, and the flow of human history according to the purposes of His grace. He is all-powerful, all loving, and all wise. God is Father in truth to those who become children of God through faith in Jesus Christ. He is fatherly in His attitude toward all believers. (II Corinthians 6:18)
- 2. God the Son

Jesus Christ, the only begotten Son of God, conceived of the Holy Spirit, and born of the Virgin Mary, is the divinely appointed Mediator between God and man. Totally without sin, Jesus Christ fulfilled the Law, suffered, and died upon the cross, for the salvation of sinners. He was

entombed, arose on the third day and ascended into heaven to be at the right hand of His Father, where He now resides making intercession for His people. He is the only Mediator; the Prophet, Priest, Head of the Church, and Sovereign of the Universe. (Luke 1:35, Isaiah 9:6, Ephesians 5:23, II Corinthians 5:21)

3. God the Holy Spirit

The Holy Spirit is the Spirit of God. He inspired holy men of old to write the Scriptures. Through illumination He enables men to understand truth. He exalts Christ. He convicts man of sin. He calls men to the Savior, and provides regeneration. He cultivates Christian character, comforts believers, and bestows the spiritual gifts by which they serve God through the Body of His Church. His presence in the Christian is the assurance of the unbreakable oneness with God to bring the believer into the fullness of Christ. He enlightens and empowers the Church in worship, evangelism, and service. (John 4:24)

Section C. The Trinity

God is revealed to us as Father, Son, and Holy Spirit, each with distinct attributes, but without division of nature or being: One God. (I John 5:7-9)

Section D. Mankind

God created man in His own image, free of sin. Man transgressed against the command of God and fell from his original holiness and righteousness. Therefore man inherits a corrupt nature, wholly opposed to God, His Law, and is under condemnation. Only the grace of God can bring man into His holy fellowship and enable man to fulfill the creative purpose of God. The sacredness of mankind is evident in that God created man in His own image, and in that Christ died for man; therefore every man possesses dignity and is worthy of respect and Christian love. (Genesis 1: 26-28, Acts 17:26)

Section E. Salvation

Salvation is the redemption of man, not through any merit of his own, and is offered freely to all who accept Jesus Christ as Lord and Savior. Jesus Christ, by His own Blood obtained eternal redemption for the believer. In its entirety salvation includes regeneration, sanctification, and glorification. (Ephesians 2: 8-9, Romans 8:30)

- Regeneration, the new birth, is a work of God's grace whereby believers become new creatures in Christ Jesus. Regeneration is a change of heart by the Holy Spirit through the conviction of sin, to which the sinner responds in repentance toward God and faith in the Lord Jesus Christ.
- Repentance and faith are inseparable experiences of Grace. Repentance is a genuine turning from sin toward God. Faith is the acceptance of Jesus Christ, and commitment of the whole person to Him as Lord and Savior. Justification is God's gracious acquittal that transforms sinners who repent and believe in Christ. Justification brings the believer into a relationship of peace and favor with God.
- 3. Sanctification is the experience, beginning with regeneration, by which the believer is set apart to God's purposes, and is enabled to progress toward spiritual perfection through the presence, power, and enabling of the Holy Spirit, who dwells in the believer.
- 4. Glorification is the culmination of the redemptive process and is the final blessed and abiding state of the redeemed.

Section F. Providence

God decrees or permits all things that come to pass, and perpetually upholds, directs, and governs all creation and all events.

Section G. The Church

The First Baptist Church of Elfers, a New Testament Church, with the Lord Jesus Christ as its head, is a local body of baptized believers who are associated by covenant in the faith and fellowship of the Gospel. The Church observes two ordinances of Christ, committed to His teachings, the exercising of spiritual gifts, and seeking to extend the Gospel to the ends of the Earth. This Church is an autonomous body, operating through democracy. In such a congregation, all members are equally responsible.

Section H. Believer's Baptism

Baptism is an ordinance of the Lord Jesus, which is obligatory for every believer who shall be immersed in water in the Na me of the Father, the Son, and the Holy Spirit. It is a sign of his belief in the death and resurrection of Christ, the remission of s ins, and the giving of himself up to God to live and walk in a newness of life. (Matthew 28:19)

Section I. The Lord's Supper

The Lord's Supper is a symbolic act of obedience whereby believers in Christ partake of the bread and the fruit of the vine to memorialize the death of Christ, and anticipate His second coming. (Luke 22:15-20) Section J. The Lord's Day

The first day of the week is the Lord's Day. It commemorates the resurrection of Jesus Christ from the dead and should be dedicated to worship and spiritual devotion, both public and private. (Acts 20:7a, John 20:4)

Section K. The Second Coming

God, in His own time and according to His Holy Word, will bring the world to its appropriate end. According to His promise, Jesus Christ will appear to gather all believers, living and dead into His presence. He will then create a New Heaven and New Earth where the righteous will dwell for all eternity. (Revelation 22:20)

Section L. Evangelism and Missions

It is the duty and privilege of every follower, and of every church of the Lord Jesus Christ to endeavor to make disciples of all mankind. The born again believer should have a Godly love and a burden to spread the Gospel to the world. (Matthew 28: 19-20)

Section M. Education

God's people should maintain family worship and private devotions. We should seek to educate our children about our beliefs as Christians. As a Church we will conduct biblically based education efforts such as bible studies, social activities, church schools, and other church functions. (Il Timothy 2:15) Section N. Stewardship

God is the source of all blessings, temporal and spiritual; all that we have and are, we owe to Him. Christians have a spiritual debt to witness to the whole world, a holy trusteeship of the Gospel, and a binding stewardship of their possessions. Believers are therefore under obligation to serve Christ with their time, talents, and material possessions and should recognize all these as entrusted to use for the glory of God and for helping others. According to the Scriptures, Christians should contribute their means cheerfully, regularly, systematically, proportionately, and with conviction for the advancement of the Kingdom of God. (Malachi 3:7-12, I Corinthians 16:1-2)

Section O. Cooperation

Christ's people should, as occasion requires, organize such associations and conventions as may best secure cooperation for the great objectives of the Kingdom of God. Such organizations have no authority over one another or over the churches. They are voluntary and advisory bodies designed to elicit, combine, and direct energies of our people in the most effective manner. Members of New Testament churches should cooperate with one another in carrying forth the missionary, educational, and benevolent ministries for the extension of Christ's Kingdom. Christian unity in the New Testament sense, is spiritual harmony and voluntary cooperation for common ends by various groups of Christ's people. Cooperation is desirable between the various Christian denominations, when the end to be attained is justified. Such cooperation should involve no violation of conscience or compromise of loyalty to Christ and His Word as revealed in the New Testament. (Psalm 133:1)

Section P. The Christian and the Social Order

Every Christian is under obligation to make the will of Christ supreme in their own life and in society. Means and methods used for the improvement of society and the establishment of righteousness among men can truly and permanently be helpful only when they are rooted in the regeneration of the individual by the saving grace of God in Jesus Christ. The Christian should oppose, in the spirit of Christ, every form of greed, selfishness, and vice. They should work to provide for the orphaned, the widowed, the needy, the aged, the helpless, and the sick. Every Christian should seek to bring industry, government, and

society as a whole under the sway of the principles of righteousness, truth, and brotherly love. Christians should be ready to work with all men of good will in any good cause. Being careful to act in the spirit of love without compromising their loyalty to Christ and Truth. All believers should be encouraged to do daily devotions and seek a daily encounter with Jesus Christ.

Section Q. Religious Liberty

Civil government is ordained of God. The duty of Christians is to render obedience in all things not contrary to the revealed will of God. The Church must not rely solely on civil power to carry on its work. The state has no right to impose penalties for religious opinions or sincerely held religious beliefs of any kind. The state has no right to impose taxes for the support of any form of religion. Religious liberty gives the right to form and propagate opinions in the sphere of religion without interference by the civil power. Section R. Marriage and the Family Structure

We believe that the Holy Scriptures teach God has planned the family as the first institution of the world. It is made up of persons joined to one another by marriage, blood, or adoption. Marriage is the joining of one man and one woman with the promise of being faithful to one another for a lifetime. This is the only biblical model for marriage. Marriage is God's special gift. Marriage shows the union between Christ and His Church and, through it, both men and women are given the gift of intimate friendship. (Ephesians 5:21-26)

3. Our Philosophy

We believe each child is unique and created by God, so we commit to finding and building each child's competencies and helping each child reach ambitious and feasible goals. We commit to developmentally appropriate practice, formally and informally observing progress towards developmentally appropriate milestones.

4. Mission Statement

The mission of the preschool is to extend the ministry of and help accomplish the purpose of the church, which is to guide families to see and know the love of Christ and accept His free gift of salvation. We will provide tender loving care, safety, education and early childhood development for each child enrolled to attain his/her greatest potential spiritually, mentally, physically, emotionally and socially. This is to be accomplished by providing developmentally appropriate activities, guidance and a program of ministry and outreach to the families of the children enrolled.

5. Goals for Children

Children enrolled in Elfers Christian Preschool will:

- Develop a positive self-concept and attitude towards learning, self-control, and a sense of belonging
- Develop curiosity about the world, confidence as a learner, creativity and imagination, and personal initiative
- Develop relationships of mutual trust and respect with adults and other children
- Understand and respect social and cultural diversity
- Use language to communicate effectively and to facilitate thinking and learning skills
- Represent ideas and feelings through pretend play, drama, movement, music, art and construction
- Think critically, reason, and solve problems
- Gain knowledge about the care of their bodies and maintain a desirable level of health and fitness
- Our curriculum is biblically based to guide each child in character building skills and on how to treat others, guiding them in their Social/Emotional development
- To learn at a young age that God loves them and wants a relationship with them

Refer to the "Statement of Basic Beliefs" on the previous page

6. Security Procedures

You'll notice our commitment to your child's safety begins the moment you step in our front door. As you enter the preschool you will be asked to sign in your child, we will then open the door to allow entrance into the building. The same will happen in the afternoon; you must come to the front door and sign out your child. We have cameras in all of our classrooms and hallways that the office can access and view. We will need to see proper identification when someone besides you, the parent, is picking up. Please help us when you first start by showing ID until the office staff gets to know you. Only you and the people you authorize to pick up your child will be allowed into the interior classroom area while children are in school.

Parents must communicate with the teacher when picking up from the classroom or the playground. DCF (Department of Children and Families) policy prohibits us from releasing to an individual that appears to be intoxicated or impaired.

7. Child's First Day

You have probably visited us on one or more occasions and our intent is for you to have a smooth and informative enrollment process. In addition, we want you and your child to feel as comfortable and welcomed on your first day at Elfers Christian Preschool as possible. Sometimes saying goodbye isn't easy. We recommend you keep it reassuring, short and sweet. We don't consider any questions or concerns you may have as unimportant.

8. Parent/Teacher Communication

We understand that an important part of your life is learning about your child's day and progress at Elfers Christian Preschool. We are happy to have short conversations when you drop off or when pick up your child. However, if more time is needed we ask that you schedule an appointment outside of class time.

9. Open Door Policy

At Elfers Christian Preschool we welcome parents to come and visit their child during class time or to sit down and eat lunch together with them. Please bring a lunch for your child. We do supply morning and afternoon snacks. If you would like to come in to read a story or help with an art project, simply stop by the office and we will schedule a time for you to do this. We want you as a parent to be involved in your child's education.

10. Discipline and Guidance Policy

Children of new clients will be placed on a one week trial basis. This allows both parties to get acquainted with each other and see of any personality conflicts or disciplinary problems that may arise. During this time, both parties have the opportunity to terminate the agreement and seek alternative childcare arrangements. We believe the best way to prepare children for future success is to help them develop self-control, resolve conflicts and become increasingly responsible for their actions and behaviors. If we see a potential situation developing, the teacher will:

- a. Distraction: A change of a child's focus and activity that is unacceptable to one that is acceptable without confronting inappropriate behavior.
- b. Redirection-Involves anticipating problems and intervening with a solution before they occur.
- c. In the event a child is in a position to cause harm to him or herself or to the other children, they may be removed from a situation for a time out. This is not a form of punishment but instead a calm down period for the child. This is a time for the teacher to talk to the child and help them get in control of his or her emotions.

- d. Sent to the office for corrective action by talking to the Director or a phone call to the parent.
- e. Continued visits to the office, or calls to the parent with no visual signs of behavior change will result in a parent/teacher conference or dismissal. (At the discretion of the Director on duty)

No child shall be subjected to corporal punishment under any circumstance, deprived of scheduled snacks/meals or punished for toilet accidents. Our approach to discipline resembles our overall philosophy of positive reinforcement. By focusing of the positive aspects of the child's day, they will hopefully seek positive attention as opposed to any attention.

11. Health and Immunizations

Physical and Immunization information is to be on file for each child within one week of enrollment. These forms can be acquired at their doctor's office; the forms needed are:

- a. Immunization
- b. 3040 Physical Form
- c. Birth Certificate

Please send us any documentation when your child receives an immunization so we can keep their records up to date.

It is important to us to keep proactive steps to protect your child's well being at all times, but from time to time, accidents do occur. All injuries will be documented carefully and you will be given an accident form to sign that is kept in your child's file explaining the incident. In the case of an emergency we will call 911 and then immediately call the parent/guardian and advise them of the situation.

Please make sure your child's registration information is up to date at all times.

12. When your child is sick or needs medication

If your child becomes ill while at school, we will notify you immediately so you can make arrangements for pick up within the hour. A child who becomes ill will be separated from the other children and we will do our best to comfort him/her. We will record the name of the child affected, the time we contacted the parent, time they were picked up, date, symptoms and if they were notified on our policy (24 hour fever free to return to school). If your child needs a prescribed medicine during the day it will need a doctor's label on it to be given and a signed medication form by the parent with the appropriate dosages and times to be given written on it.

To attend school your child needs to be well enough to function in a group. If your child exhibits any of the following symptoms, he/she must be excluded from attendance.

- a. Has or has had a fever at or above 100.5F within the past 24 hours
- b. Is vomiting or has had at least 2 cases of diarrhea
- c. Shows evidence of a communicable disease, such as chicken pox or pink eye
- d. Has an undiagnosed rash
- e. Has any discharge from the eyes, ears, and or profuse colored nasal discharge
- f. A child identified as having head lice must not be permitted to school until the following day; only if treatment has occurred and was verified.
- g. COVID19- a child or family that has been diagnosed with COVID19 or has been exposed may return after following CDC guidelines.

In order to return to school, your child needs to be free of all symptoms for 24 hours.

We ask that Elfers Christian Preschool be notified with a diagnosis so that if necessary a notification can be sent out to our families if the children have been exposed to a contagious illness.

13. When your child is absent

If your child will be absent due to vacation or illness, please notify the school as soon as possible so we can plan for his/her absence. Two week vacation fee is waived after one year enrollment. Any other weeks during the year will require a payment to hold your child's placement in their class.

14. Severe Weather

If the Pasco County School District is closed due to unsafe weather conditions, Elfers Christian Preschool will also be closed. Watch your local weather channel for information on Pasco County.

Monthly fire drills are conducted to help the children know what to do in case of an emergency. Hurricane and tornado preparedness is taught in the classroom by their teacher.

15. Registration and Tuition

A \$75.00 non-refundable registration fee is due at the time that your child's application is submitted. A \$50.00 renewal fee is due every year after the onset of the new school year in August. Tuition is due at the beginning of each week. If payments are not made by Tuesday night at 6:00pm a late fee of \$20.00 will be charged to your account.

A \$40.00 (Nonsufficient funds) fee will be charged for any returned checks. If we receive 2 NSF checks you will need to make your payments in cash for the remainder of the year. We do not take debit or credit cards at this time. Tuition must be paid in full, without deduction for absences of any duration or for any cause other than pre authorized vacation time.

Hours of care are 6:30am-6:00pm Monday-Friday

Drop off is no later than 10am and VPK 8:30 when they are in session.

In an emergency, care will be given in addition to the hours indicated, additional pay at a set hourly rate will need to be paid the day of service.

Late pick up charge is \$15per every 10 minutes per child.

Any child not picked up by 6:00PM without prior communication to the school and after unsuccessful attempts by the school contacting you or an authorized person Elfers Christian Preschool must contact the local Sheriff Department.

16. Confidentiality Policy

All personal records of children and families are kept in the strictest confidence. Information pertaining to admissions, progress, health or discharge of a child shall be confidential, unless we have written permission for disclosure from the parent or guardian who signed the child's registration form. We adhere to HIPPA privacy laws and will only release information if the child abuse is suspected or if a child has a medical emergency and information is needed in order to help the child.

17. Statement of Non-Discrimination

Subject to the dictates found in the Word of God, we are committed to equal opportunity for all qualified persons, without regard to race, color, citizenship, national origin, gender, disability, or age. This applies to both admissions to, and employment by Elfers Christian School. However, Elfers Christian School is a Christian organization that theologically and doctrinally aligns with the Southern Baptist denomination. Elfers Christian School reserves the right to make numerous decisions (e.g., decisions regarding admission, employment, retention, etc.) based on such doctrinal and theological beliefs. Elfers Christian School will always seek to uphold the teachings of the Bible (as interpreted by First Baptist Church of Elfers, D.B.A. Elfers Preschool Christian School).

18. Supplemental Information

Elfers Christian Preschool reserves the right to exclude the new enrollment of or terminate the existing enrollment of a child at any time, including, but not limited to, children whose behavioral and educational needs cannot be met by Elfers Christian Preschool, and or children whose fees and or tuition payments are in arrears.

19. Withdrawal Policy

A courtesy of at least 2 weeks' notice is requested upon withdrawal of a student in the care of Elfers Christian Preschool. If you have a concern about a teacher or staff member or are upset for any reason, please stop by or call the office and let us know about the situation so we can resolve the issue before a withdrawal occurs.

20. Days that our Preschool is closed

New Year's Eve/New Year's Day Labor Day

Good Friday Thanksgiving and Friday After

Memorial Day Christmas Eve Independence Day Christmas Day

Last day of summer before school starts

If the holiday occurs on a Saturday we will be closed on the Friday before and if the holiday occurs on a Sunday, we will be closed on that Monday.

21. Dress Code

Clothing should be neat, clean and modest. The children should be able to go to the bathroom with little or no assistance. Shoes should be closed toe with a back strap. Tennis shoes are recommended. If you send children with any jewelry, Elfers Christian Preschool will not be responsible for any jewelry that is lost or stolen. Children are not allowed to come to school with unnatural hair color (red, blue, green etc.) or odd shavings. Boys are not allowed to wear earrings or other piercing. Girls only one set of earrings, no other piercing. No tattoos please.

22. Supplies

Parents will supply at least two changes of clothes, even if their child is fully potty trained.

- *Kinder-Mat at least 1" thick
- *labeled crib sheet for nap time
- *blanket
- *supplies of diapers and wipes, if needed

Children may not bring electronic games or cell phones to school.

23. Lunch Policy

Elfers Christian Preschool, we want to ensure that the foods and drinks your preschooler has throughout the day are important for his or her health. Fruits, vegetables, grains, protein foods and dairy are a part of a healthy eating style and together provide the nutrients their bodies need. Please limit the amount of added sugars, and saturated fat in your preschool's meals, drinks and snacks. Lunch boxes must have an ice pack in them to keep the food from spoiling. We also want to ensure the safety of our students' lunches and snacks by adhering to the Florida Department of Children and Families' guidelines for children under the age of four which states: "Foods that are associated with young children's choking

incidents must not be served to children under 4 years of age, such as, but not limited to, whole/round hot dogs, popcorn, chips pretzel nuggets, whole grapes, nuts, cheese cubes/sticks any food that is similar shape and size of the trachea/windpipe. Food for infants must be cut into pieces ½ inch or smaller, food for toddlers must be cut into pieces1/2 inch or smaller to prevent choking. This applies to all food, even food provided by parents/guardians" (Florida Department of Children and Families Child Care Handbook, page 13)

This parent handbook contains general information concerning the policies and procedures of Elfers Christian Preschool and is subject to change.

Elfers Christian Preschool
Contact information
Sara Goodart, Preschool Director
5630 Olympia St.
New Port Richey, Florida 34652
E-Mail
sgoodart@elferschristianschool.org
Website
www.ecspreschool.com
727-848-1310
727-848-2400 Fax

Elfers Christian Preschool is an Accredited Preschool and a participant of the Florida Association of Christian Colleges and Schools; we are also under religious exemption from state regulations with FACCS but follow as good or better standards.